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Strengthening Democratic and Decentralized Governance through Civic Involvement & Increased         Community Advocacy for Quality Education 
QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS

Section I Questions Received by E-mail

1. Can applicants convert MS Word and Excel files into PDFs to submit via email in order to decrease file size?

1. 
A.1 Section B/Evaluation Criteria 2 states the need for an illustrative implementation/work plan.  What period should be covered by the proposed work plan? 1, 3, or 5 years?

A1. Yes


    2.
Section B/Evaluation Criteria 2 states the need for an illustrative implementation/work plan.  What period should be covered by the proposed work plan? 1, 3, or 5 years? In which 20 districts is the core education contractor currently working?

A2. Bidders should include a detailed implementation/work plan for the first year, as well as an


illustrative plan for the following years.
     3.
In which 20 districts is the core education contractor currently working?

A3. The core education cooperative agreement has not yet been awarded.  In the first year of education 
cooperative agreement, the implementing partner will work in South Tongu, Ho, Bole, and West Gonja 
districts.  A fifth district may be selected at a latter date.

4. In which 20 districts has USAID been improving civic input? (2 districts per region)


A4. 


Region             

Districts                       



Western Region

Axim and Agona



Central Region


Dunkwa and Swedru



Greater Accra


Amasaman and Dodowa



Volta Region


Jasikan and Hohoe



Eastern Region

Asamankese and Suhum



Ashanti Region

Mampoten and Agona



Brong-Ahafo Region

Techiman and Berekum



Northern Region

Walewale and Gambaga



Upper West Region

Wa and Nadawii



Upper East Region

Sandema and Navrongo

5. In Section C/Background/A Democracy and Governance (on p. 16), the RFA states that, “Ghana has identified the creation of a Local Government Service and a capacity building process to strengthen district government…”. Is the Local Government Service functioning? What capacity building is it offering?
A5.  Currently, there is no Local Government Service. The Local Government Services Bill was only signed into law by the President in December 2003. Therefore, no capacity building being offered at this time. Nonetheless, the development partners are currently working on a terms of reference (TOR) for an assessment of local government capacity. Once the TOR is complete, it is expected that an assessment will follow shortly after and that the development of capacity building programs will come out of the findings from this assessment. 

6. In Section C/Background/A Democracy and Governance (on p. 16), the RFA indicates that, “CUs sponsor town hall meetings & public budget hearings…”, but the % of DAs conducting public hearings on District Financial Report is proposed as an illustrative indicator for strengthened DA capacity.  Who is really responsible for town hall meetings and public financial hearings?
A6.  First, we would like to emphasize that this is only an illustrative indicator. The offerors are welcome to propose new indicators if they wish. As to who is responsible, it is the DAs that ultimately hold the town hall meetings and public financial hearings. The civic unions supported by USAID’s current implementing partner advocate for and offer to facilitate these meetings and hearings. For more information on the civic unions, please refer to the GAIT Assessment Report.

7. Are the district incentive grants mentioned in Section C/Approach (on p. 23) provided by the Recipient of the SO8 Core RFA or the DG/Education RFA?
A7. The district incentive grants will be provided by the recipient of the Education Core Cooperative Agreement.  The DG/Educ recipient will provide micro-grants to school communities.
8. The RFA, in Section C/Implementation, Methodology, and Proposed Activities (on p. 24) encourages the applicants to review best practices and tools developed under the current DG and Education strategies. Four education tools are listed in the Annex, Section E. What other documents cover DG best practices from the current program?
A8. The following reports provide information on DG best practices in Ghana and will be posted on our website:

· GAIT Assessment, December 8, 2003

· USAID/Ghana Democracy and Governance Activities Impact on Political Change 1994-2002, by MSI,  July 19, 2002

· USAID/Ghana Democracy Program, Assessment Report, June 20 – July 30, 1999

9. Can USAID provide a list of the “key democratic local governance (DLG) deficiencies” offerors are requested to address in Section C/Implementation, Methodology, and Proposed Activities/A. Strengthened District Assembly and District Education Office Capacity (p. 25)?
A9.  Please refer to the Section C. IV Challenges  - in the RFA and also the Democracy and Governance Section of the USAID/Ghana Country Strategic Plan: http://www.usaid.gov/regions/afr/country_info/ghana.html  These documents describe some of the challenges facing democratic local governance in Ghana. Offerors are expected to identify what they believe are the critical deficiencies and propose how they will be addressed. 

10. What are the titles of the evaluations of the current DG activities and where can these be found?

A10. The evaluations are:

· GAIT Assessment, December 8, 2003

· USAID/Ghana Democracy and Governance Activities Impact on Political Change 1994-2002, by MSI,  July 19, 2002

· USAID/Ghana Democracy Program, Assessment Report, June 20 – July 30, 1999


These evaluations will be made available on our website. 

11. Will USAID please provide a list of the implementing partners and development partners and their roles noted in Section C/Coordination with Partners (p. 27)?
A11. NO.  We recommend that you look at the USAID/Ghana Country Strategic Plan found at http://www.usaid.gov/regions/afr/country_info/ghana.html.  There is a section under S08 titled Donor Programs.  If you need more information you can contact the donors directly or through their website.

12. Who is the core education- implementing partner and what role is that partner currently playing, as noted in Section C/Coordination with Partners (p. 28)?  Please describe the results reporting currently being undertaken by the core education- implementing partner.
A12. The core education implementing partner has not yet been selected.  No results’ reporting has begun under the new strategy.  

Section II Questions and Answers from the Bidders’ Conference 

Q1. When you talk about the large US and Ghanaian organizations that are likely to be successful bidders, which organizations do you have in mind?

A1. We do not endorse any particular firms. Nor do we know which particular firms are writing proposals for this RFA. We are hoping we will see newcomers bidding. 

An organization has developed a listserv that will provide an opportunity for local organizations to describe themselves and their capacities.  This web address is: www.marist.edu/ghana   

Q2. Do you know when this listserv will be available?

A2. Our intention is to post responses to these questions, a list of all of the organizations who are participating in this conference with contact information on Tuesday, January 20 or Wednesday, January 21. 

Q3. You keep mentioning US-based and Ghanaian organizations. What exactly is a US-based or a Ghanaian organization? My organization has a presence in many countries, including the US. Does that mean that we are a US-based organization?

A3. A US-based organization is an organization that is registered as a US organization and therefore falls under the tax guidelines of the United States. US-based organizations have a US-based headquarters, or US-based parent companies, regardless of where they are working. Ghanaian organizations are organizations that operate principally in Ghana and fall under the guidelines of the Government of Ghana (GOG) with respect to being a legal and registered organization. 

Q4. This is in reference to question 4. Which organizations currently run the programs in the 20 districts that you mention here?

A4. Our current implementing partner is the Cooperative League of the United States of America (CLUSA). On the ground the program is named Government Accountability and Improved Trust (GAIT). CLUSA has been working directly with District Assemblies, civic unions and other community-based civil society organizations in the 20 districts. We suggest that you look at the recently conducted GAIT assessment for more information.
Q5. This is also in reference to question 4. Do districts that fall outside of the 20 districts listed here have a chance to work with USAID?

A5. Let us clarify that these 20 districts are the ones we are currently working in, and our program is drawing to a close. The RFA that we are discussing today will have new districts, so there is the possibility we will be working in additional districts. We have also done an assessment of the CLUSA/GAIT project and posted it on the web. We encourage you to read that document.

Q6. Is there a format for preparing the application?

A6. Included in the solicitation are clear and detailed instructions that provide the proper format and organization for preparing the application. It is a long document but the instructions for preparing the application are right at the beginning.

Q7. On page 18 of the RFA you indicate that NALAG is subject to top-down influences and that the NCCE is dysfunctional and under-resourced. Do these institutions have any chance of benefiting from this program?

A7. That is from the challenges section of the RFA. What we tried to do in that section was present the terrain or context in which the RFA will operate. We are looking for bright ideas. If you think your project can help NALAG, we highly encourage you to put that in your proposal.

Q8. This is in reference to question 5. You say that “… development partners are currently working on a terms of reference (TOR) for an assessment of local government capacity.” Who are the development partners and when might that be finished?

A8. There are a number of development partners working on this, in collaboration with the Ministry of Local Government and Rural Development’s Decentralization Secretariat. The donors include the Canadian International Development Agency (CIDA), the German GTZ, the Danish International Development Agency (DANIDA), USAID, and a few other organizations. This is part of a broader donor-led interest in building local government capacity that the recently created Decentralization Secretariat coordinates. They have been working on the TOR for the past 6 to 8 months and anticipate completion in the next 3 to 9 months. The initial pilot assessment itself hopefully should get underway in about a years time. It will begin as a pilot and based on its success will be expanded to cover all the districts in the Country. It will be some time before we see the results of the full assessment.

Q9. This is in reference to question 7. Basic Education is very important for the hearing impaired. There need to be interpreters to help the hearing impaired in school but there are no resources. Would your program help to improve the education of the hearing impaired? 

A9. The focus of USAID support is working with teachers to identify learning disabilities. 

Q10. I wanted to ask about the linkages between the Education and the Democracy and Governance RFAs. The issue of cooperation between two cooperative agreement holders is one that might pose some challenges for USAID as a managing organization. How do you plan to hold the cooperative agreement holders accountable considering that cooperative agreements tend to allow a lot of flexibility?

A10. Under the current education program, for example in the southern districts, we have two implementing partners working in the same communities and schools. We have the Education Development Center, which has been supporting community education, and we have the Academy for Education Development, which has been providing management and technical training to teachers. It is true that coordination has to be looked at closely in that setting. We have found, however, that we can deal with potential problems by having frequent meetings and open discussions. 

The Democracy and Governance team and the Education team at USAID/Ghana also have a good, close working relationship. We are sure that will be able to foster a similar working relationship between the two implementing partners under this program. We could have put our community component into our education program, but we felt that we would miss out on the things the Democracy and Governance team will be supporting at the district level. We have also been observing that some of our QUIPS schools were frustrated when they would take on issues like a drunk teacher or an inadequate school building and were unable to get any response from their head teacher or the DEO. We need to give them an opportunity to link with the District Assembly and/or bring about pressure through other district-level civil society organizations.

Q11. You were talking about quality education and the potential contributions communities can make. Is there any research on what the perception of communities is? What is the communities’ conception of quality education?

A11. That is a good and relevant question. In public schools we take our lead from MOEYS and GES. In addition to parents wanting their children to learn to read and write and do math, there is an interest for children to learn some income-generating skills and some practical life skills. There has been some headway made by the introduction of a life-skills module, but more could be done in that area. 

Income-generating and life-skills education is, however, not something that USAID is taking on at this point. We are more concerned that children are not learning to read.  If children are not learning to read these other activities are not going to take root. That is why we are focusing on basic literacy.

However, in the north we are planning to support a complementary education program under the core education project that we discussed yesterday. There will be more latitude to incorporate income-generating type courses into that program.

Q12. You mentioned in the RFA that you hoped districts would graduate during the life of the project. I know that during the QUIPS program there is a two-year cycle for graduation. You also mention a “tipping point” in the institutionalization of democratic processes. Are there some criteria that you have in mind about what a graduated district would look like and will there be pressure to have these districts graduate?

A12. One of the things we realize from our current assessment is that it is impossible to stick all of the districts to a two-year schedule. Every district in this country is different. They start off at different levels. Some districts may have extremely engaged district officials open to change while others may be more reticent. For the same matter, some districts may have already have a well organized group of civil society organizations while others may not. Given that, we did not want to determine a strict schedule. One of the things we determined from our recent assessment of the CLUSA GAIT project is that while we have been successful in a number of areas, we do not think that all of the existing civic unions in the current GAIT program could benefit from continued engagement from the new activity proposed in this RFA. For this reason, we are interested in proposals that would continue to engage existing districts because we do not think they are at a point where you can say that they will be able to take care of themselves.


As for what graduation means, we have no set definition, but we would like the bidders to come up with their own ideas about what would constitute a successful graduation of a district. We realized during the assessment that this is a difficult thing, so we think that hearing your ideas about successful graduation it will help us to see how you have thought through your plan. It will show us what issues you have thought through and think are important. It will also help you define the key indicators you are looking for. The reality is that whoever implements this program will be looking for a number of indicators to determine how things are moving along. In some districts, some areas might be moving a lot more quickly than in others.
The terminology “tipping point” is admittedly confusing. We are saying that we realize the implementing partner is not going to reach 100% in all areas or in all the indicators, but we are looking for what constitutes success in the majority of the areas. We leave this for you to define. As we mentioned earlier, we are asking a lot of questions in this RFA and we are looking for how you are going to answer them. What is your rationale and how have you thought the process through.

Q13. I understand that performance and outcomes are important to USAID. I also understand that it is difficult for you to make a lot of small grants, so you are hoping to make a large award to a large organization which will then subcontract to smaller organizations. How do you ensure, then, that grassroots organizations will get their ideas and their creativity to the surface? Do we have any assurances that these larger groups will include the creativity of grassroots organizations?

A13. In order to be the successful offerer on this award you will have been scored according to a set of point-based criteria. To facilitate the inclusion of small US and Ghanaian organizations, about which we are very serious, we have added points in our evaluation criteria for bidding organizations to include small organizations. We also hope that the program managers who will be overseeing implementation will be encouraging participation of small organizations during the execution of the contract. This is a priority for us and probably necessary for the success of these programs. 

We are also open to suggestions about how we can strengthen our receptivity to small US and Ghanaian organizations from a business perspective.

Q14. My question is on requirements. What is the minimum number of local NGOs necessary for a bidder to have so that the assessment committee will determine that you are truly representative? 

A14. We have not set a fixed number. We are looking for substantive/technical participation from a variety of organizations. This will strengthen your proposal by addressing the requirement that small organizations be included and by increasing your technical expertise. We then want the successful bidder to execute the project as they wrote it. 

Q15. On page 7 of the RFA it says that for budgeting purposes there is no cost for in-country logistical support. I think this is for expatriates. Does that apply outside of Accra or only within Accra?

A15. The executive office of USAID is providing support for the expatriate staff that will be housed here in Accra. If expatriate staff are going to be housed outside of Accra you will need to include that in your budget. Our reach is limited. Logistical support for your organizational setup, in or outside Accra, will not be provided by USAID and should be included in your budget.

Q16. If I knew which organization was going to win the contract I would start working closely with them. I know that Catholic Relief Services (CRS) is currently running a USAID sponsored program. I want to know if CRS is bidding on this contract, or if it is excluded from bidding on this contract, so that I would know what step to take.

A16. We do not have any advance knowledge of who will be submitting applications. So you can find out if CRS is bidding by asking them. More broadly, you can find out who else is bidding by networking.

Q17. The issue of quality education can be impacted by a number of factors. Since we are zeroing in on quality of education under the Democracy and Governance program, are we to believe that other programs will buttress what will be done in quality education?

A17. We have an extensive core education strategy and RFA. Yesterday we had a bidders’ conference in this room where we discussed our Core Education program. This program will be doing a variety of things to improve quality education.

Q18. (Follow-up) If that is so why is the Democracy and Governance RFA not limited to democracy and governance?

A18. The reason is that community participation is an important ingredient in providing quality education. Without community involvement you are unlikely to have quality education. We felt that since community involvement in schools is a civic participation issue, and since our democracy and governance team was also working at the local level to try to promote greater civic participation, that we should work together.

Democracy and Governance is a crosscutting issue. We have been on the ground for six years and have covered issues related to education, to agriculture, to HIV/AIDS, to health, etc. All of these things will continue to be related to democracy and governance.  We had a particular opportunity to work more extensively with education and are taking advantage of it. This is not to say that we are not going to continue to work on democracy and governance.

Q19. I would like to suggest that the organization that wins the contract be informed of the local organizations that have submitted proposals and their specializations. If the contracting organization works with these smaller organizations they will be able to maximize the impact of the program.

A19. See our answer to question number 13. 

Q20. In your cost application format from the RFA you give a website where we can download a Standard Form 424. That website is not currently accessible.

A20. It is at USAID website and we have verified it is working.

Q21. In the welcome address, the speaker mentioned that you are looking for larger organizations with more experience. What qualifies as a “large” or “experienced” organization? 

A21. We had a number of questions about this yesterday. A lot of organizations wanted to know if an organization that may only have experience in one component covered by the RFA could bid on part of the project. What we are looking for is an organization that covers the entire requirement. This means that there is a large oversight and management requirement here. We also require that organizations have a lot of experience, so the organization that partners with us will have to have experience managing large contracts that have many different components. They will also need experience managing sub-awards to smaller organizations. Knowing the stringent requirements of the US government will also be helpful. 

Small and local organizations should therefore try to gain experience and learn US government requirements by coming under a larger program as a sub-awardee. As you learn the system you gain experience and put yourself in a position to win larger contracts and possibly become a direct awardee. Many successful organizations have started out as a sub-organization to a larger organization.

Q22. On page 12 of the RFA you distinguish “key personnel” and “key positions”. I am trying to figure out if key personnel and key positions refer to the same entity. Oftentimes key personnel are specified specifically as chief of party or someone with a particular technical expertise, whereas a key position might be something that is very important but which the partner has a more latitude in changing. So my question is what latitude would the partner have to change the content of these positions?

A22. Key personnel are going to be the personnel designated in the agreement that will require USAID concurrence to change. Key positions do not necessarily require USAID concurrence. They are, however, critical to performance, and we require substantive information about the background of the people who will fill them. Examples of key positions would be an M&E Specialist or an in-country director of operations.

Q23. The offeror should identify the people and positions they consider to be key personnel?
A23. Yes
Q24. This RFA talks about governance in terms of civic participation. There is very little reference to the GOG. We know that there are many projects that have counterpart institutions in the GOG with whom they work. Contractually, there is often a requirement for partnership and interface with GOG institutions. Which government institutions are central to this RFA? And, for the purpose of bidding, which institutions should we be liaisoning with in the discourse of our proposals? There is GES, MLG, MOEYS etc., a whole set of government institutions that could be implicated in this project.

A24. We did not discuss our entire strategic objective today but we do work at the national level and are also engaged in work in Parliament. For the purposes of this RFA the government institutions we are looking to work with are MLGRD, GES, and MOEYS, but we are also looking for your ideas. It will be interesting to see which institutions you think we should be engaged with given our objectives and what we are looking to accomplish at the local and grassroots levels.

MOEYS is going to be particularly important because they are in the process of developing a new education act and the implementing partner should be engaged in that process. Our main contact in MLGRD has been the Decentralization Secretariat. In fact, we have worked closely with them to develop our strategy and we will be talking with them as we evaluate the offers.

You should also be aware that MLGRD has put out a decentralization action plan. We have been working closely with them on that and we believe that the activity under this RFA will help address the community participation component of that action plan. From the prospective of the MLGRD/Decentralization Secretariat, this activity will serve as a pilot to study how the engagement of communities, which is critical for decentralization, can be pursued.

Q25. If we are talking about community involvement and participation, it seems that communities do a lot of things that do not enable them to send their children to school. For instance, there is the issue of girl’s education in Walewale, where girls over 11 are not allowed to attend school. Once again, I bring up the intransigent issues of hunger and poverty as the key barriers that make it difficult for children to get access to quality education.

A25. We are currently working with the local government in Walewale to increase civic participation in working with the District Assembly and Civil Society organizations. In the Walewale area community groups have been interested in mobilizing local government to encourage parents to send their children to school.

Issues of access often come down to issues of poverty, particularly in the north. We are not intending for this particular RFA to address that. Rather the core education program has an intermediate result that specifically aims to improve school attendance by girls, as well as boys, through a number of means. One of these is to establish complementary schools that are able to schedule learning outside of work activities and bring schooling closer to children. You are probably also aware that the government is planning to waive school fees in disadvantaged areas next year.

Under the current solicitation, when the implementing partner works with SMC and PTAs in public schools, one issue that communities talk about is enrolment. A major role of the SMCs has been to encourage the enrolment of disadvantaged children.

Again, a key reason we mixed democracy and governance with education is that education comes up as an area of concern in every region we have worked in so far. The idea is to work with community groups in each district to help them identify key issues in their district. 

Q26. Headmasters and teachers have a particular status in villages, so this whole idea of community participation contributing to quality education seems a little removed. I would like examples of civic organizations who have said “this is what we want our children to learn”. That is my first question. My second question is about the process of application. As I understand it now, small Ghanaian organizations are being expected to prepare 50 page proposals. Are the innovative ideas in these proposals then going to be handed over to the major applicants? Why should small Ghanaian organizations be expected to participate? I agree we want to learn from the major organizations in the field, but I’m not sure this is the way to go about it.

A26. We are expecting a proposal from any organization, large or small, that has a proposal that they would like us to review. The USAID technical committee will review all proposals. The larger organizations will not read the smaller organizations proposals. Again, what we are encouraging is that the local NGOs work on partnering with a larger organization to increase their chances of success. What we are really looking for is a collaborative effort between large and small organizations.  

We had a suggestion from one of our attendees that we consider handing over unsuccessful applications to the successful awardee. We did not give an answer to that. We are not suggesting that small organizations submit applications unless they have the ability to manage the entire project. I do not want you to leave here thinking that we want small organizations to go through the effort of submitting applications which would then be handed over.

We would also like to reiterate that we are having this bidders’ conference because hearing your questions will give us pause to consider your comments and clarify the solicitation so that we can get more innovative, responsive bids. But it is really an opportunity for all of you to network. We have a two-pronged approach: First, we will be sharing this contact list with everyone who has registered today. Second, we are also working on developing a listserv so that everybody will have the opportunity to get their name and capabilities out for other organizations to see. 

In response to the first part of your question, we have found under QUIPS that communities can do many very meaningful things. One thing that they can do is address the problem of teacher motivation. Teachers often feel they are underpaid and underappreciated. In communities where people have been sensitized to this issue they sometimes provide food goods to the teachers or find other ways of showing their appreciation. This has helped to address the teacher morale problem. Secondly, communities can also influence teacher attendance. In places where community members visit the school and raise issues of teacher attendance with the head teacher or the DEO attendance improves, which influences quality. Third, communities have been contributing to their local schools by making sure children have a pencil and a notebook. In addition, most schools are now developing school improvement plans in consultation with the local community, so communities will identify improvements that they want to see. Community organization are doing a lot of meaningful things.

Q27. I would like to contribute some of our experiences working at the grassroots, where we have had a great deal of success organizing and working with community groups. We all know that local parents often pull make retention difficult by pulling their children out of school. If a retention program is presented well, however, community members come to understand why people should be in school so that they will offer their support. In terms of girls’ education, our organization has produced results when we have involved communities in making decisions.

Many people at this conference are concerned with how to link with large organizations. I have a suggestion to make. There are a few large US organizations around who will be able to meet the technical specifications necessary to win this award. Let me suggest that they bring what you call local organizations to work with under their fold and regroup them into their various capacities, making “local international organizations”. From there, these local international organizations can work with community organizations, creating a linked network. 

A27. CONTRIBUTION
Q28. How will the substructures of the District Assemblies be involved in community governance? It is often these sub-structures that have made community governance effective.

A28. Our resources in the democracy and governance program have been focused on the district level. This is largely because not all of the area and unit councils are well resourced, or even staffed. Nonetheless it is an interesting area and because we are partnering with education, we will have the opportunity to work with these sub-structures. This will not be a major component of the project; we are not going to be doing a major capacity-building exercise with these structures. Nonetheless, they are important structures and wherever possible we would hope that our partner would engage with them. Unit councils are very active in some cases but non-existent in others. So it depends on the district.
Q29:  What support, if any, will USAID provide to support the implementation of the GES capitation
grant scheme?

A29: In order for a school to receive capitation grants it must have an active SMC, a School Performance Improvement Plan (SPIP) with planned expenditures, and a bank account managed by the SMC.  The implementing partner should plan to assist SMCs in meeting these requirements.  

DEMOCRACY & GOVERNANCE/ADVOCACY FOR QUALITY EDUCATION

BIDDERS’ CONFERENCE

LIST OF ATTENDEES 

	
	NAME
	ORGANIZATION
	AREA OF SPECIALIZATION
	E-MAIL
	PHONE

	1
	Dr. N. Ghartey
	Centre for Dev. Studies, UCC
	DG Development & HRD
	
	042-30906, 042-32983(Off)

	2
	Eric P. Asoro
	Universal United Youth Org.
	DG & Decentralization
	u.u.y@yahoo.com
	024-830713

	3
	Dzogbenuku William
	Ghana First Initiative
	DG & Decentralization
	lesta_1@yahoo.com
	027-7413090

	4
	V.K. Darkey-Mensah
	EDSAM Ltd
	Governance
	darkeym@yahoo.com
	091-27621,020-8181366

	5
	David Foster-Forson
	CEDECOM
	Investment Promotion
	
	024-741676

	6
	John Akowuah
	CEDECOM
	Education
	ako_john@yahoo.com
	024-543791

	7
	Spencer Taylor
	CEDECOM
	Governance
	spencer_taylor16@yahoo.com
	024-251798

	8
	Abigail A. Sam
	ADRA
	Gov. Training, Local level
	Aasam@adra.org.gh
	021-220779

	9
	Rev. K. Yeboah-Duah
	PCG
	DG & Decentralization
	kyduah@yahoo.com
	020-8193556

	10
	Angela Adams
	IMPACT
	DG & Education
	impactghana@yahoo.com
	020-8183117

	11
	Kwesi Eshun
	ITOUR
	Education Solutions
	
	022-304242

	12
	Nick Opoku
	ITOUR
	Education Solutions
	
	022-306560

	13
	Kwesi Nyantakyi
	NEDA
	DG & Decentralization
	
	024-529292

	14
	Ephriam Dei-
	C.F. International
	Education
	couragefound@yahoo.com
	021-414493

	15
	Prosper Dzansi
	MAPLE Consult
	Planning & Governance
	pdzansi@yahoo.com
	021-241133, 020-8175676

	16
	S.A. Odoi
	Self Help Motivating Society
	
	
	

	17
	S.A. Darkwah
	Self Help Motivating Society
	Girl Child Education
	
	021-766995

	18
	Larry Attipoe
	Sync Consult
	Governance
	lattipoe@hotmail.com
	024-651032

	19
	Sasu Okoampah
	Sync Consult
	Planning & Governance
	isboamah@yahoo.com
	024-281852

	20
	Richard Boamah
	Rural Action Foundation
	Education
	raf_rural@yahoo.com
	021-510518

	21
	J. Cobbah
	CEDIC
	Education/Communication
	
	021-7011677

	22
	Linda Boon
	Management Ltd
	Social/Economic
	maid@internetghana.com
	021-779219

	23
	Robert Djokoto
	Fishing For Christ Mission
	Education
	fishingfcm@yahoo.com
	021-303489

	24
	Dr. Baffour A. Duah
	CDD-Ghana
	Governance
	cdd@ghana.com
	021-776142

	25
	Mrs. Margaret Adjei
	Wallace Foundation
	Dev. Child Education
	magtee26@hotmail.com
	024-629258

	26
	Dr. A.C. Eruba
	Wallace Foundation
	Dev. Child Education
	aceruba@yahoo.com
	024-468405

	27
	K.E. Senanu
	CASP
	Quality Education
	kescasao@hotmail.com
	021-500035

	28
	Osei Joseph
	
	
	
	

	29
	Adodo Cain Tamakloe
	Besworld Company
	Education & Management
	besworld@ucumgh.com
	021-774816

	30
	George B.O. Afriyie
	Neplect Foundation
	Street Children
	neplectfound@yahoo.com
	020-8114597

	31
	Martin Atta-Fynn
	Deloitte
	Info. Tech. Proj. Managemnt
	mattafynn@deloitte.com
	024-239687

	32
	Emmanuel Akwetey
	IDEG
	C.S., Governance
	ideg@africaonline.com.gh
	024-325157

	33
	Antwi S. Sarpong
	Rural Water & Hum. Dev.
	Community Mobilization
	ruwalda@yahoo.com
	024-651032

	34
	Kwame Akyianu
	Akyianu & Associates
	Governance
	akyianu@wwwplus.com
	027-7473859

	35
	John Yanulis
	World Education
	Strengthening Civil Society
	jyanulis@hotmail.com
	021-774095

	36
	Susan Adu-Arye
	World Education
	CSO Capacity building
	worlded@ghana.com
	021-774095

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	37
	Fanny Kumah
	NCCE
	Civic Education
	fkumah@ncce.org.gh
	      021-2456707

	38
	Paapa Nketsiah
	NCCE
	Civic Education
	paapa_nketsia@yahoo.com
	020-8118115

	39
	Kakraba Ben
	Youth Network Centre
	Education & Others
	youthnetwork@email.com
	027-7440555

	40
	Sylvia Hinson-Ekong
	Rescue Foundation
	Education
	sylviahinson@yahoo.com
	024-239978, 231575

	41
	Seidu Issah
	Pan-African Organization
	Democracy & Governance
	posdev@ghana.com
	022-404517

	42
	Samuel K. Asubonteng
	National Catholic Secretariat
	Governance
	dscncs@africaonline.com.gh
	021-500491-3

	43
	Dr. Ruth Love
	IED
	Education & Training
	rblenterprises@aol.com
	

	44
	Kofi Adu
	GAPVOD
	Umbrella Organization
	gapvod@ghana.com
	021-254690

	45
	Emmanuel N. Owiredu
	Community Voices Network
	Community Development
	enowiredu@yahoo.com
	024-461709

	46
	Emma Gyamera
	EARC
	Education/ Research
	emma@internetghana.com
	

	47
	Kafui Kumaha
	EARC
	Testing, Capacity Bldg
	earc@africaonline.com.gh
	021-781498, 020-8111543

	48
	Derek Aryee
	Plan International
	Child centered Comm. Dev
	Derek_Aryee@plan-international.org
	020-2017735

	49
	Douglas Titiati
	Plan International
	Education
	douglastitiati@planinternational.org
	020-2012624

	50
	Yaw Frimpong
	Victim Support Initiative
	Education, Counselling
	yafrim2003@yahoo.com
	031-20224

	51
	Yaw Amaning Asante
	Young Professional Found.
	Eduation, Health
	
	024-633327

	52
	Mornah A. Bernad
	SIDSEC
	Education
	mba4ub@hotmail.com
	024-749056

	53
	Moses D. Appiah
	Action on Child Poverty
	Educ.Health Birth & Deaths
	ACCP2003@yahoo.com
	020-8181660

	54
	David Pemmoh
	FOTAMAC
	
	
	024-292082

	55
	K. Out-Manu
	FOTAMAC
	
	
	024-292082

	56
	Elizabeth Akpaloo
	AGE
	Governance
	agegh@wwwplus.com
	020-8133390

	57
	Sam Essah
	AGE
	Governance
	bengallows@hotmail.com
	020-8110766

	58
	Victor Abotsi
	Pruched Aid
	Educ, HIV AIDS
	pruchedaid@yahoo.com
	

	59
	Apaloo Lolo
	Dodi
	Management
	apaloololo@hotmail.com
	020-8151539

	60
	Paul Sebuava
	Action Aid
	Governance /Education
	gquaisie@actionaid_ghana.org
	

	61
	Georgina Quaisie
	Action Aid
	Governance/Education
	gquaisie@actionaid_ghana.org
	024-623910, 021-764931-2

	62
	Joseph Tawiah
	Action Aid
	Local Gov. Education
	
	021-764931/2

	63
	Robert A-Kyeremeh
	Action Aid
	Local Gov. Education
	asomaduk@actionaid_ghana.org
	021-764931/2

	64
	Gloria Ofori-Buadu
	Women Asst.&Bus.Assoc
	Democracy & Governance
	gloriaob2002@yahoo.com
	024-381996, 020-8184945

	65
	Maxwell Kofi Zanu
	Educational Care Network
	Education Solutions
	edunet@dr.com
	024-501715

	66
	Kwesi Johnson
	DED-German Dev. Service
	Gov. Environment, Agric
	raindrops_kjohnson@hotmail.com
	024693214, 021-773226

	67
	Chris Mensah
	Management Development
	Education, Economics
	medcoconsult@yahoo.com
	020-8139003

	68
	David Ayiku
	Bida Foundation
	Agric & Education
	bidaghana@yahoo.com
	024-636347

	69
	K. Nulakor
	Bida Foundation
	Agric & Education
	bidaghana@yahoo.com
	024-636347

	70
	Sarah Afful
	Neglect foundation
	Democracy & Governance
	neglectfound@yahoo.com
	024-725351

	71
	Clement Oduro-Mensah
	World Vision
	Comm. Mobilization, Educ
	Clement_Oduro-Mensah@wvi.org
	021-222216, 226643

	72
	Kupesh Patel
	Yale University
	Development Econ
	rupesh@aya.yale.edu
	

	73
	Akwasi Agyeman
	Global Media
	Media
	aagyeman@ggmaworld.com
	021-685172/3

	74
	S.K. Adu-Mensah
	KAB Governance Consult
	Dev. Child Education
	kabconsuld@yahoo.com
	021-255942

	75
	Lydia E.A. S-Addy
	Centre for Appre. Systems
	Local Governance
	lydia_addy@yahoo.com
	020-8171500

	76
	Foster Fia
	Initiative Nouvel Int.
	Democracy & Governance
	fosterfia@yahoo.com
	024-665543

	77
	Nana Owusu
	Global Management Group
	
	naowusu@hotmail.com
	

	78
	Lawrence Prempeh
	Global Management Group
	
	lprempeh@cmmghana.com
	

	79
	Sefadzi Dzikum
	Dev. Needs Foundation
	Democracy & Governance
	devneeds@yahoo.com
	024-270311

	80
	Kwamena Boakye
	Social Dev. Partners
	Local Governance
	sodepcom2002@yahoo.com
	024-501013, 021-853157

	81
	Felix Ograh
	NASOL
	Micro Financing, Local Gov
	fograh@yahoo.com
	024-78856

	82
	Nana Ofori Owusu
	NASOL
	Micro Financing, Local Gov
	nasol@yahoo.com
	021-683960

	83
	Bukari Issaku
	BEWDA- Ghana
	Local Gov. Civic Involvement
	dewda_@yahoo.com
	0743-22310, 024-778049

	84
	Hamidu Ezekiel
	CODI
	Educ. Local Governance
	azore73@yahoo.com.uk
	024-861624

	85
	N. Akuetteh
	ECWA
	CBO Capacity Building
	nii12_neod@hotmail.com
	020-2113086

	86
	David Orth-Moore
	CRS
	Education
	dorthmoore@crsghana.org
	021-776188

	87
	Pastor Joseph Brenyah
	CVSI
	Education
	cvsi2001@yahoo.com
	021-768894

	88
	Nana O. Koranteng
	MIGALS
	Managing the Imp. Dev.Prog
	nkoranteng@ghana.com
	021-784963, 024-323991

	89
	Alhaji Alhassan Alfa
	MYPA
	Education
	alhaalhassan@hotmail.com
	021-241929, 024-649233

	90
	Albert Quansah
	INI
	Local Governance
	quansa69@yahoo.co.uk
	020-8120919

	91
	Hans Afewu
	Destiny Pathfinders
	Education & Health
	destinypathfinders@yahoo.com
	024-523281

	92
	Odoom Emmanuel
	Life Ark Movement
	Education & Health
	lifeark@yahoo.com
	024-507566

	93
	ALEX selawoka Kwame
	Youth Today
	Indiscipline
	aselawoka@yahoo.com
	028-230227

	94
	Fanny Quaraine
	GIMPA
	Management
	amafanny@yahoo.com
	021-401681

	95
	Michael Fiadzigbey
	GIMPA
	Education & Governance
	mfiadzigbey@yahoo.com
	027-7442988

	96
	Carl Lokko
	GIMPA
	Procurement&Mgt Training
	carlokko@yahoo.com
	024-252249

	97
	Bettina Halvorsen
	PCI
	Health
	bhalvorsen@projectconcern.org
	

	98
	Lyenne Efem
	PCI
	Community Development
	lefem@pci-gh.org
	021-760727

	99
	Emeya Xatse
	Project Concern International
	Gov. Capacity Building
	intern1@pci-gh.com
	021-760727, 024-650436

	100
	Lawer Hushie
	Tree of Life Int.
	Community Development
	treeoflife86@hotmail.com
	027-7483587

	101
	Adu-Gyamfi L.B 
	WASHT
	Education, Health
	washt@wwwplus
	0582-42093

	102
	Alberta Quartey
	WV Ghana
	Development
	alberta_amu@wvi.org
	024-274807

	103
	Sulley Gariba
	Inititute for Policy Alternation
	Policy Analysis Advocacy
	gariba@africaonline.com.gh
	024-547241

	104
	Jonathan Langdon
	Institute for Policy Alternation
	Good Governance
	langdon_jonathan@yahoo.com
	024-166695

	105
	Chaka Adu
	xero Surveys
	Data Collection Analysis
	chaka@
	024-312314

	106
	Obed Ebo Asamoah
	Friends of the Nation
	Gov.Advocacy, Education
	friends@africaonline.com.gh
	031-21050, 024-518300

	107
	Aba Baawa Arthur
	Rura Aid Alliance Foundation
	Development, Education
	raafghana@yahoo.com
	024-601007

	108
	Carl Kofi Agyei
	Mandelg Youth Dev. & Peace
	HIV/ AIDS
	
	021-664897

	109
	Kafui Dogbatse
	Strategic Communications
	Comm. Strategy Develop.
	stratcom@ghana.com
	021-224724

	110
	Josiah Tlou
	Virginia Tech University
	Civic Education
	tlou@vt.edu
	001-540-231-8344

	111
	Wilbert Tengey
	ACHD
	Good Gov. Development
	achd@africaonline.com.gh
	021-223031,024-325736

	112
	Kofi Gbedemah
	CORANET
	Governance & Training
	coranet2@yahoo.com
	091-28360, 020-8163110

	113
	Ernest Tay Awoosah
	ISODEC
	Local Gov, Edu, Policy Adv
	tay@isodec.org.gh
	021-252249

	114
	Theodore Asamang
	Youth Idleness Control Cent
	Education
	theoasamvicc@yahoo.com
	020-2003152

	115
	Issahaku Paul
	Markaz Al Bishara
	Education
	pissahaku@yahoo.com
	027-878559

	116
	Aaron Obenyah
	Markaz Al Bishara
	Community Dev. Particip
	obenyah@yahoo.com
	024-525981

	117
	Seth Kwame Twum
	Universal United Youth
	Education
	uuy64@yahoo.com
	024-830713

	118
	Kwame D-Aboagye
	The Ark Foundation
	Governance
	kdaboagye51@hotmail.com
	020-8114826

	119
	Kevi Evans
	PRONET
	Education
	wotsey@yahoo.com
	024-984119

	120
	Vincent Awuku
	PRONET
	Education
	vinawuku65@yahoo.com
	024-544220

	121
	Philip Gyabi
	International Dev. Centre
	Good Governance
	
	0744-22308

	122
	Laura Wuennenberg
	CARE
	
	wuennenberg@canogog.org
	021-224001

	123
	Claudine Mensah
	CARE
	Education
	mensah@care.cafe.tg
	021-226001

	124
	Diawary Bouare
	CARE
	Civil Society
	dbouare@firstnets.com
	021-226001

	125
	Eric MacDawutey
	Centre for Deaf Development
	Deaf Educ. & Empowermt
	macdawutey@yahoo.com
	024-562919, Message only

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	126
	Leslie Long
	World Learning
	DG, Comm. Participation
	family@afribone.net.ml
	

	127
	P.K. Gbordzi
	University of Ghana, Legon
	Various
	dip@ug.edu.gh
	021-500306, Tel/Fax

	128
	Prof. Chris Gordon
	University of Ghana, Legon
	Various
	dip@ug.edu.gh
	

	129
	Prof. Jacob Songsore
	University of Ghana, Legon
	Various
	dip@ug.edu.gh
	

	130
	Anthony Twumasi
	Franco Group
	IT
	atwumasi@hotmail.com
	020-8136513

	131
	Jennifer Twumasi
	Milennium Kids School
	Education
	atwumasi@hotmail.com
	021-510043

	132
	John Dapaah Yeboah
	Save Life Partnership
	Poverty, HIV/AIDS
	savelifepartnership@yahoo.com
	024-706435

	134
	Samuel Oracca-Tetteh
	Network for Health Rel. Found
	Poverty, HIV/AIDS, Educ.
	netheal2002@yahoo.com
	051-25590, 027-7422085

	135
	Kingsley Arkorful
	EDC
	Education
	karkorful@igmail.com
	024-798541, 021-771335

	136
	Gerry Boardman
	EDC
	Education
	karkorful@igmail.com
	

	137
	Bright Bobbey
	EDC
	Education
	karkorful@igmail.com
	

	138
	Bernard V. Lartey
	CEDEP
	Local Governance
	
	021-244537-8

	139
	Kwame Ankobeah
	CEDEP
	Participatory Methodologies
	
	024-620987

	140
	Mensah Abrampah
	CEDEP
	Participatory Methodologies
	abmens2001@yahoo.com
	024-274314

	141
	Rita Amankwah
	CEDEP
	Governance, Organiz. Dev.
	051-24581, 024-653518
	

	142
	Carr Williams
	The Needy Club of Ghana
	Education
	tncog9@yahoo.com
	020-8157041

	143
	Kwabena Kyereh
	Coal. & Adv, for Women Emp
	D&G/Cooperative
	CAWE203@yahoo.com
	024-967296

	144
	Addo Cheremeh
	CAWE
	Quality Education
	cawe203@yahoo.com
	024-967296

	145
	Rose Sika
	CAWE, Hohoe
	Quality Education
	cawe203@yahoo.com
	024-475379

	146
	Awuvey Emmanuel
	CAWE, Ho
	Quality Education
	cawe203@yahoo.com
	024-976232

	147
	Edith Shiamatey
	CAWE, Ketu Dist. Aflao
	Quality Education
	cawe203@yahoo.com
	

	148
	Bert Laurent
	CLUSA
	
	BLAURENT@NCBA.COOP
	1-202-638-6222

	149
	Papa Sene
	CLUSA
	D&G
	psene@ghana.com
	021-7011247

	150
	Charles Appiagyei
	Gh. Fed. For the Disabled
	Disability
	gfdgh@africaonline.com.gh
	021-240530

	151
	Ismail Lansah
	Northern Ghana NGO Network
	Gov. Capacity Building
	ngnd@africaonline.com.gh
	071-24797

	152
	Robert Adane
	Northern Ghana NGO Network
	Gov. Capacity Building
	ngnd@africaonline.com.gh
	071-24798

	153
	Dr. S.E.Edusah
	BIRD - KNUST, Kumasi
	Capacity Building, 
	sedusah2001@yahoo.com
	051-60406, 024224458

	154
	Hon. M. 
	Assembly member
	Assembly Concepts
	
	028-252674

	155
	Lilian Bruce Lyle
	Office of Parliament
	Governance
	quatekai@yahoo.com
	024-485028

	156
	Angela Degbe
	CODEG
	Governance
	codeg2@yahoo.com
	091-28690

	157
	Justice Bediako
	CODEG
	Governance & Dev.
	codeg2@yahoo.com
	091-28691

	158
	Agyapah Baah
	Support for Comm.Mob. Proj
	Governance & Dev.
	scmpp-2000@yahoo.com
	031-27453

	159
	Alfred Kwami Opoku
	JEAVCO
	D & G
	opokukwasi@yahoo.com
	022-212515

	160
	David Luvi
	Savana Zone Foundation
	Environmental
	
	021-666151

	161
	M.K. Mensah
	Multiple Linkages
	Decentralization
	mkmens@hotmail.com
	024-848400

	162
	Lewis Addai Baah
	GEPG
	Local Gov. Environmental
	gepglabaah@yahoo.com
	024-885991

	163
	Jerrold Keilson
	Creative Associates
	Education
	jerroldk@caii-dc.com
	1-202-772-0512

	164
	Richard Agyekum
	R.I.D.E
	Strengthening Democracy
	littleosborn@yahoo.com
	024-643513

	165
	Aniewu Innocent
	CEBAF
	Girl Child Education
	cebat2002@yahoo.com
	0935-22467

	166
	Bright Amissah-Nyarko
	Christcare Rural Mission Foun
	Decent. among Comm
	mybrightus@yahoo.com
	024-564070

	167
	Kwame Sam Appiah
	Org. of Rural Primary Ed. Dev
	Children Education
	plugsam@yahoo.com
	024-646830

	168
	Philip Addae
	Ejura Yough Health Org.
	Girl Child Education
	yohorge@yahoo.com
	0565-22014

	169
	Thomas Issah
	Action On Disability & Dev.
	Disability
	addghana@africaonline.com.gh
	071-23026, 22213

	170
	Humphrey Doe
	Maamobi Progressive Assoc.
	Strengthening Democracy
	
	021-241929

	171
	Dankyi D.K,
	ADRA
	Advocacy, HIV/AIDS
	gabdankyi2000@yahoo.com
	021-220229


INTERESTED PARTIES LIST FOR SO5

SO 5

Strategic Communications Ltd.

P.O. Box 149

Trade Fair, Accra

Tel.: 233-21-224724/7011677

Fax.: 233-21-7011590

Email: stratcomm@ghana.com
Contact Person:  Esther A. N. Cobbah, CEO

QUANS Consult International Ltd.

P.O. Box GP 4880

Accra

Fax: 233-21-234599

Email: qconsult@wwwplus.com.gh or quansconsult@yahoo.com
Contact Person: Ing. Festus Quansar, Chief Executive

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Gulf House, 4th Floor

Tetteh Quarshie Roundabout

Legon Road

PMB CT42, Cantonments

Accra, Ghana

Tel.: 233-21-506217/506218

Fax.: 233-21-506216

Email: ruka.o.sanusi@gh.pwc.com
Contact Person: Ms. Ruka O. Sanusi, Senior Advisor

Pact, Inc.

1200 18th Street, NW

Suite 300

Washington, DC 20036

Tel.: 202-466-5666 or 252

Fax.: 202-466-5669

Email: achassy@pachq.org
Contact Person: Aaron M. Chassy, Consultant, NBD

Softkraft Co. Limited

106 Tanbu Street, East Legon

P.O. Box CT 4184 

Cantonments, Accra

Tel.: 233-21-510334/510344/510354

Email: info@softkraft.gh or www.softkraft.gh
Contact Person: Michael Mortoo, Software Architect, email: corku@softkraft.gh
Centre for Social & Community Development Consultation

P.O. Box GP 14884

Accra

Tel.: 024-530579

Fax.: 021-223222

Contact Person: Ketiboa Blay, Executive Chairman

Julius Agyepong

JEAVCO ASSOCIATES LIMITED

(Project Management Consultant)

 Tiwaa Hous, Room 309 DTD

 Community Six, Tema

 Tel      022 212515/6 (Office)

022 410447 (Residence)

 027 – 573316/ 020 – 815477

 E-mail: jeavco2002@yahoo.com
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